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KEY INFORMATION OF KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTATES LIMITED

Background information

Kenya Indusirial Estates Ltd was established as a Limited Liability Company under the Companies Act
in 1967. At Cabinet level, the Cabinet Secretary represents the company for Industry, Trade and
Enterprise Development, who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the
company. The company is domiciled in Kenya. '

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the company is to promote and facilitate industrialisation through the provision
of credit facilities, business advisory services and industrial work spaces. '

Vision
To lead in the development of vibrant and sustainable Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises in
Kenya.

Mission

To empower MSMEs in value addition by providing industrial incubation, affordable finance, and
business advisory services to support industrialization for job and wealth creation (in Kenya).

Core Values

The Company upholds the following values;

° Integrity
s Professionalism

o Equity
* Accountability

Acronym: IPEA

Directors

The Board of Directors is appointed in line with the Provisions of section 6 of the State Corporations
Act (Chapter 446) Laws of Kenya.
The provisions of section 6 provide that the Board shall comprise of:
a) A Chairman appointed by the President who shall be non-executive unless the President
otherwise directs;
b) The Chief Executive;
c¢) The Principal Secretary of the Parent Ministry;
d) The Principal Secretary to the National Treasury; and
¢) Not more than seven other members not being employees of the state corporation, of whom not
more than three shall be public officers, appointed by the Cabinet Secretary.
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The appointment is by name and by notice in the Gazette and is for a renewable period of three ym@

or for such shorter period as may be specified in the notice.

The Directors who served the company during the year/period were as follows:

No | Name Position Appointment date
1 Muthoni Kimani, MBS, | Chairman Appointed Chairman of the
EBS Board of Directors on the 6t
October, 2021
2 Bob Karina Director Appointed on the 02/10/2015
Reappointed Director on
19/12/2018 left on 18/12/2021
3 Dr.  Parmain  ole | Managing Director Appointed on 5/9/2016
Narikae, PhD, MBS
4 Geoffrey Mwitari Alternate Director to Principal Appointed on 14/10/2015
Secretary, The National Treasury | Left on 31/01/2021
5 Lucas Kirui Director Appointed on the 02/10/2015
Reappointed on 14/12/2018
Left on 13/12/2021
6 Neto Agostinho Director Appointed on 14/12/2018
Left on 13/12/2021
7 Harriette Igonanga | Director Appointed on 14/12/2018
Chiggai Left on 13/12/2021
& Mark Kebenei Director Appointed on 14/12/2018
Left on 13/12/2021
9 Evelyn Waithira | Director Appointed on 14/12/2018
Mwithirania Left on 13/12/2021
10 | Nicholas Kamau Alternate Director to Principal Appointed on 29/04/2021
Secretary, State department for
Industrialization
3
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Manager, Legal Services & Company Secretary
Charity Ndeke

P.O. Box 78029-00507

Nairobi.

Registered Offices
KIE Building

Likoni/ Lusingeti road
P.O. Box 78029-00507
Nairobi, KENYA

Corporate Headquarters
P.O. Box 78029-00507
KIE Limited Building
Likoni/ Lusingeti Road
Nairobi, KENYA

Corporate Contacts
Telephone :( 254) 6651348/53
E-mail: admin@kie.co.ke
Website: www.kie.co.ke

Corporate Bankers

1. National Bank of Kenya Ltd
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 72866-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

2. Kenya Commercial Bank Lid

P.O Box 48400-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

3. Standard Chartered Bank Kenya Lid
P.O Box 30001-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

4. Cooperative Bank of Kenya Ltd
P.O Box 48231-00100

Nairobi, Kenya
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Independent Auditors

Auditor General

The office of Auditor general
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GOP 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.0.Box 40112

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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II. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

L.

MBS, EBS
Chairman Board of Directors

Miss Muthoni Kimani LLM, PGD,

Muthoni Kimani is a lawyer by profession who has practiced law for over 35
years. She has worked in the office of the Attorney General rising to the position
of senior deputy solicitor general and director, CEO of the asset recovery agency.
Ms. Kimani holds LLB degree from the University of Nairobi and a Post graduate
diploma from the Kenya School of Law having been called to the Bar in 1985.
She is a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (UK), the International
Bar Association and the Law Society of Kenya. She is also an active member of
the IBA, Assets Recovery Sub Committee which was set up by the IBA under the
Business Crimes Committee, which deals with fighting Business crimes and
corruption.

She has attended several international workshops and conferences including
OECD, UNODC, WORLD BANK on crime prevention, criminal justice
particularly on combating terrorism, money laundering, corruption, human and
wildlife trafficking, cybercrime, and other white collar crimes. She was head of
Kenya's delegation at the Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice Congress in
Doha May 2015 which passed the resolution on integrating criminal justice for
sustainable development which was adopted by the UN General Assembly in
December 2015.

She has a vast experience in civil litigation and has represented the government in
major constitutional, judicial review litigation. She has also represented the
government in several international commercial arbitrations, investor state
disputes under different international arbitral rules such as ICSID, UNCITRAL
and the ICC rules.

She has a wide experience in policy matters, management and corporate
governance. She's passionate about combating international organized crimes,
including corruption and money laundering and mutual legal assistance.

In 2014, she set up the Kenyan Assets Recovery Agency and successfully handled
many cases which led to the recovery of assets found to be proceeds of crime. She
was also instrumental to the establishment of the multi-agency approach adopted
in combating corruption and money laundering. In recognition of her work in
reforming the civil litigation department of the office of the Attorney General,
H.E. The President of Kenya awarded her the honors of the Moran of the Burnin g
Spear (MBS); in 2020, she received the honors of EBS in recognition the Assets
Recovery Agency's success.

g

Amb. Peter Kaberia, CBS
Principal Secretary,

State Department
Industrialization

for

Ambassador Kirimi Kaberia is a career Diplomat having served in many countries.
He was the Principal Secretary for State Department for Mining & Petroleum
before his posting to the State Department for Industrialization. Ambassador
Kaberia has served in different levels in government prior to joining the State
Department for Industrialization. Some of his previous assignments include:
January 2020 - February 2021: Principal Secretary, State Department for Mining
& Petroleum;
April 2017 — January 2020: Principal Secretary State Department of Sports
Development;

2016 - April 2017: Principal Secretary Defence;
2010-2016: Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary to Brazil, Colombia,
Venezuela, Chile, and Argentina;
2007 — 2010: Deputy Ambassador and Head of Chancery Kenya Embassy in
Madrid, Spain;
2006 —2007: Counsellor and Head of Chancery, Kenya Embassy in Paris and the
Holy Sea;

2004 —2006: Director for Research and ICT, Ministry of Foreign Affairs; 2002 —
2004: Counsellor Kenya Embassy in Washington DC; 1994 — 2002: Director for
International Programs, Les Aspins Centre in Washington DC.Amb. Kirimi
Kaberia holds a Master’s Degree in International Law (LLM). He is also a holder
of a Degree in Journalism and Communication. Ambassador Kaberia was also
educated in Kenya, the United States, and Spain.
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Dr. Parmain ole Narikae is the Managing Director. He holds Doctorate in Business
Administration. He also holds an MBA and Bachelor of Science Degree in

Directors.

He joined on 5% September, 2016.

3. Dr. Parmain ole Narikae
Managing Director

Bob Karina is the Founder, Chairman of Faida Investment Bank, Corporate
Finance Specialist, an accomplished Stockbroker and Research Analyst. He is the
Vice Chairman, Nairobi Securities Exchange (NSE), Chairman of the Rwanda
Stock Exchange, Chairman of Norwich Union Properties Ltd., Director Kenya
Industrial Estates and served as Director of Kenya Private Sector Alliance
(KEPSA) and Kenya National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (KNCC&F

~—

among others.

Bob, holds a MSc in Corporate Finance from the University of Liverpool, UK, in
addition to technical and professional qualifications from the Institute of Systems
Science, National University of Singapore, International Statistical Programs
Center, United States Bureau of the Census, USA, Hong Kong Polytechnic
Industrial Center, Institute of Development Studies, University of Sussex, UK.,
E.A. Statistical Training Centre, University of Dar-es-Salaam, Tanzania and
London Institute of Statisticians.

Bob is a Founder Member of the Institute of Certified Investment and Financial
Analysts (ICIFA) and was awarded Commendation and admitted as a F ellow of
the Institute for exemplary service rendered since inception.

Bob serves as the Chairman of the Association of Kenya Stockbrokers Nominees
Ltd. He is a Member of the Institute of Directors, Director of the Central
Depository and Settlement Corporation (CDSC), the NSE Clear Ltd., Trustee of
both NSE Investor Protection Fund and NSE Derivatives Settlement Guarantee

Fund.

Bob played a critical role in the establishment of the CDSC, the NSE Automated
Trading System (ATS), the Wide Area Network and the Broker Back Office
system at the NSE as the Chairman of the Implementation Committee that
spearheaded developments in Kenya’s Capital Markets.

4. BobKarina

Director
For over two decades, Bob has acquired vast experience in Investment Banking

and is passionate about supporting organizations improve their bottom line, Iist on
the exchange, mergers and acquisitions, raise capital, grow and thrive,

He is married to Jennifer Karina, has three children and several grandchildren,
enjoys jogging, swimming and playing golf.
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5. CPA Geoffrey K. Mwitari
Alternate  Director to Principal

CPA Geoffrey Mwitari holds an MBA in Strategic Management from Moi
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant registered with ICPAK and has
wide knowledge in Government Finance and Accounting. Currently working with
the National Treasury, Directorate of Accounting Services,

He joined the Company on the 14th October, 2015.

Secretary, The National Treasury

6. Lucas Kirui
Director

Lucas Kirui holds a Diploma in Sales and Marketing and has experience in
procurement management. He also has experience in Marketing and
administration.

He joined the Company on the 2 October, 2015 and was reappointed on
19/12/2018.

7. Mark {. Kebenei B
Director

Mark K. Kebenei holds a Bachelor’s of Science degree in Finance and Economics
from the University of Birmingham, Alabama, USA. He is also pursuing his
Executive Master’s Degree {(EMBA) from the University of Alabama, USA.

He is a seasoned Professional and Corporate leader and has vast knowledge in
Financial Management, Investments and Institutions, and also a concentration on

Analysis and Policy.
He is an established businessman in the petroleum and gas industry.

He joined the Company on 14/12/2018.

8. Evelyn Waithira wiﬁﬁrania, HSC
Director

Evelyn Waithira Mwithirania, HSC is a holder of Master’s Degree in
Communication from the University of Nairobi, and an Undergradnate Degree in
Community Development from Daystar University.

She was confeired by H.E. Mwai Kibaki, an award in the order of the Head of
State Commendation (HSC) for her immense contribution in championing

Paradigm Shifts in Agribusiness and Civic Education to the Society.

Evelyn has had an iconic career in the media spanning over a decade, working
with Kenya Broadcasting Corporation before moving to the Royal Mediz Services
where she was recognized country-wide as the best Morning Show Hostess on a
range of matters, majorly Agribusiness, Civic Education and emerging matiers in
business and Social Economic Affairs.

She has a blazing passion for empowering other people in the spheres economic
and/or otherwise, and spends her free time educating the Public and Communities

on various Empowerment Engagements.

She joined the Company on the 14% December, 2018.

G2
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9. Harriette Chiggai
Director

Harriette Chiggai is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya. She is the

President of the Law Society of Kenya. She has an MBA- Finance :“
Governance. She is a Certified Mediator (CPM) and a Certified Governance |
Trainer. She is 2 Member Mediation and Accreditation Committee of the Supreme

Court of Kenya.

She is the Founder of the Face of Bar, the Western Jurists and the Nairobi County
YVouth Board Forums. She is also the Chairman and a Board member of Siasa

Place.

She is a certified resident ambassador to the Netherlands having achieved the DVP
world greatest potentials on the rule of law and governance.

She previously served as a Council Member Law Society of Kenya where she
chaired in -house Committee and the Young Lawyers Commitiee (among
founding members). She has also served as 2 member, Youth Committee- National
Chambers of Commerce and Industry and Deputy Secretary General East Aftica
Law Society and Chaired the EALS Young Lawyers Committee (Caucus).

She has vast experience in Corporate Governance and Board Management. She is
a Legal Consultant and trainer in the vast legal field Including Corporate
Governance, labour laws, intellectual property and strategy and risk management.

She is passionate ebout leadership, governance, youth mentorship ar’
development. She was nominated by PAW Africa as the 2015 Phenomer.
African Woman of the year based on her contribution to mentorship programmes
and progressive leadership and governance.

She joined the Company on the 14% December, 2013.

10. Neto Agostinho
Director

Neto Agostino is a trained Lawyer from the University of Nairobi. He
participated in Human Rights events at the University of Nairobi named Africa’s
Fourth Best Oralist on issues Human Rights in 2004, at an event organized by
Center for Human Rights, Pretoria, held at Dar es Salaam University. He is
currently a masters Student on International Relations at the United States
International University in Africa.

Neto represented Ndhiwa Constituency, in Homabay County at the National
Assembly of Kenya, as a member of Parliament. He was first elected to Parliament
in September 2012 following a by-election in the Constituency and got re-elected

in March 2013.

He served in the Committees of Delegated legislation and J ustice and legal Affairs
ot the National Assembly. He was the Vice Chair of Bunge Sports Club, and the
Convener of the Parliamentary Caucus on Human Rights. He was also the v’

Chair of Common Wealth Africa Parliamentary Human Rights Group. N’

Neto has a special interest in Human Rights and international Relations. He
participates in various Human Rights related activities that range from equality to
Economic Social Cultural rights. The legislations he championed in Parliament
included amongst other laws, the Health Records and Information Managers Act,
the Refugee Bill, The Reparations Bill and the Employment Skills Development

bill.

Neto serves as an expert Human Rights Resource person, and hes trained
parliamentarians in the South East Asia region in March 2016 — Srilanka on the
role of parliamentarians in promoting and protecting Human Rights. He
participated in Human Rights panel discussions in Glion III hearings in
Switzerland May 2016. He participated as an expert in Geneva, Switzerland to
help draw recommendations for Human Rights Council on early child and forced
marriages in November 2016. He has also participated as an expert at the World

9
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Refugee Council session in Dar es Salaam Tanzania in 2018 to help highlight
durable solutions for Refugees in Horn of Africa. He was a resource person in
March 2019 for the Parliament of Georgia on Human Rights and National
Security, a program of the European Union. He was a resource person for
Parliamentarians in the Pacific region, on Human Rights and Protection of Human
Rights at the Parliament of Tonga, courtesy of the Commonwealth Human Rights

Secretariat, in April 2019.

Neto Currently is the co-leader of the United Green Movement, 2 movement
which amongst other things, seeks to help realize, civil, political economic, social
cultural and Brotherhood Rights in Kenya. He is a member of the Board of
Directors of Kenya’s National Environmental Management Authority (NEMA).

He joined the Company on 14/12/2018.

Charity M. Ndeke is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya. She holds a Bachelor
of Laws Degree (LLB) from the University of Nairobi and a Post Graduate
Diploma from the Kenya School of Law (KSL). She is also a Certified Secretary
and a member of the Institute of Certified Secretaries.

She has vast experience in Commercial law.

She joined the Company in January, 2015.

11. Charity Ndeke
Manager, Legal Services &
Company Secretary

10
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I, MANAGEMENT TEAM

—_—

1. Dr. Parmain ole Narikae
Managing Director

Dr. Parmain ole Narikae is the Managing Director. He holds
Doctorate in Business Administration. He also holds an MBA and
Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration (First class
honours) from United States International University. He has wide
experience as a career banker having served in senior leadership
position as Chief Manager, General Manager and Executive
Director in Co-operative Bank and Chase Bank. He is a member of
the Institute of Directors.

He joined on 5th September, 2016.

2. Monica C. Kotut
Manager, Corporate Strategy and Planning

Mirs. Monica Kotut is currently the Manager, Corporate Strategy
and Planning. She holds an MBA (HR Option) from Kenyaita
University; Bachelor of Arts from Moi University and Higher
National Diploma in Human Resource Management from the
Institute of Human Resource management (IHRM). She is membr-
of the Institute of Human Resource management. She joined KIE .
1994 as a Projects Officer and rose through the ranks to the current

position.

3. Joseph Otieno Ayieko
Manager, Business Advisory Services

Mr. Joseph Ayieko holds an Msc in Entrepreneurship from Jomo
Kenyatta University of Science and Technology, Bachelor of
Business Administration with Information Technology, Diploma in
Community Based Project Planning and Management, Diploma in
Cooperative Audit, CPA- (Part 1I) and Certificate in Rural Credit
Management, Certified ILO Trainer on Gender and
Entrepreneurship, Certified in Strategic Management and
Leadership. He has over Twenty-five (25) years of work experience
within MSME Sector. He is a consultant and entrepreneurship
trainer on sustainable rural economic empowerment, a trained
Environmental Impact and Environmental Audit Assessor and a
member of Eastern Africa Network for Gender and Enierprise

Development Trust.

4, Charity Ndeke

Manager, Legal Services & Company Secretary

Charity M. Ndeke is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya. She |
holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree (LLB) from the University of
Nairobi and a Post Graduate Diploma from the Kenya School of
Law (KSL). She is also a Certified Secretary and a member of the

Institute of Certified Secretaries.

She has vast experience in Commercial law.

She joined the Company in January, 2015.
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5.  CPA Charles M. Mativo

CPA Charles Mativo is an Accountant by proféssion and holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from KCA University. He is a
Certified Public Accountant CPA (K) and a member of the Institute
of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK). He has
experience in Accounting and Finance. He joined the company in

1985.

Finance Manager

6. Josepiﬁ K. Tele
Manager, Industrial Estates
Development & Incubations services

Mr Joseph K. Tele holds Masters of Business administration degree
from Kenyatta University and Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting and Auditing from University of Poona. He is currently
pursuing masters of management and leadership degree at MUA.
He joined KIE in 1987 as a projects Accountant and has previously
held various management positions as Finance manager and Credit
Risk Manager. Mr Tele is also a Board member of Kenegut

Secondary ‘School.

T eginald Klmthi
Manager, Operations

Mr. Reginald Kimanthi is an economist by profession and holds a
BA in Cooperative Management from Kenyatta University.

He joined KIE in 1986 as a Projects Officer and rose through the
ranks as PBranch Manager, Regional Manager and Head of
Department and is currently the Manager, Operations.

PA

8. CPA Teobard Mug

Manager, Internal Audit

CPA Teobard Mugo is an Accountant by profession and holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from KCA University. He is a
Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK). He is in charge of
the Internal Audit Department. He joined the company in 1994.

12
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9, Dr. Doreen K. Kimathi
Manager, Credit Department

Dr. Doreen Kimathi is currently the Manager in charge of Cregit \
Department. She holds a PhD in entrepreneurship from Jomo
Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT), an
MBA (Strategic Management) from USIU-Africa and Bachelor of
Commerce (Honours), Kenyatta University. She has vast banking
and finance experience spanning over 13 years. She joined KIE in

2017.

10. Moses Miano
Manager, Risk Management

Mzr. Moses Miano is a corporate risk specialist and strategﬁ
communicating risk policies and processes for enterprises through
research and skilful handling and interpreting data. He holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the Nairobi
University and a Bachelor’s degree in science from Egerion
University. He is a certified trainer of trainers in First aid and fire
Marshal and also a graduate from Institute of Advanced techﬁology.
He joined KIE in 2021 from Absa Bank Kenya Itd where he was

risk manager e

11 Dennis G. Ong’aria
Manager, ICT

Mr. Dennis G. Ong’aria is an ICT practitioner licensed by the
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE). He holds a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Information Technology and a
Diploma in Information Systems Management. He is currently
pursuing a Master of Science degree in Information Technology
(MSc IT) at JKUAT.

He joined KIE in November 2021 as Manager ICT

He has over 8 years ICT Management experience in various State

Agencies.

12. Esther M. Mbula _
Manager, Human Resource and Adminyistration

Esther Mbula is currently the Manager, Human Resource and
Administration. She holds a Master of Business Administration
(Human Resource Management) from Kenyatta University,
Bachelor of Arts in Social Sciences from The Catholic University of
Eastern Africa; Higher National Diploma in Human Resource
Management from the Institute of Human Resource Management
and Certified Human Resource Professional Xenya, CHRP (K) from
the Human Rssource Management Professionals Examinations
Board (HRMPEB). She is a Full Member of the Institute of Human
Resource Management (THRM). She joined KIE in September 2022
as the Human Resource and Administration, Manager.

13
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1V, CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Dear Sharcholders,
It gives me great pleasure to present to you 2021/2022 Annual Report and

Financial Statements for Kenya Industrial Estates (KIE).

The period under review was a recovery period from the devastating effects
of COVID -19 Pandemic with the rebound of the global economy. I am
pleased to note that KIE cushioned Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
from negative effects of the pandemic by providing financial support and
restructuring of loans facilities.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) Market Overview.

The Kenya Economy rebounded from the crippling effect of Covid-19 pandemic to expand at 7.5 percent
in 2021 compared to a contraction of 0.3 in 2020. This was mainly atiributed to resumption of most
economic activities supported by the lifting of the Covid-19 containment measures instituted to curb the
spread of the virus. The lifting of ban was possible due to the scaling up of the capacity of medical
facilities, the positive results of preventative measures, and the rapid deployment of vaccines.

The MSME:s sector plays a significant role in social economic transformation and indusirial development
of the country in line with vision 2030. With a high rate of unemployment in Kenya, the MSMEs provide
an immense potential for providing job opportunities. MSMEs account for 93 per cent of total
employment in Kenya and contribute about 23.6 per cent of GDP making them significant players in the

economy.

Business Performance :
Kenya Industrial Estates delivered a resilient performance in 2ll the key result areas despite the

challenging operating environment. The company provided credit io MSMEs amounting to Kshs.1.03
Billien in 2021/2022 FY, created 31,177 jobs, trained 56,854 entrepreneurs on business and technical
skills and linked 5,624 entrepreneurs to markets, source of materials and technology. The company
continued with its improved performence by posting a profit for a third year running signifying a

complete turnaround.

Our Strategy

Kenya Indusirial Estates is committed to championing the development of MSMEs in Kenya by
ensuring the enterprises are incubated, provided with affordable credit, adequate workspace as well
as develop their capacity in a sustainable way. Our strategy is anchored on four key result areas in
line with our mandate. The Key result areas are: Financing, Industrial development, Business
Advisory services and Institutional Development. These pillars will ensure that we achieve our

theme of consolidating operational gains for growth and sustainability.

14
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Community Engagement
o committed to deliver our mandate in a responsible ma

As a responsible corporate Citizen, We ar
showing concern for the environment and communities within the areas we operate. During the p

our staffs were involved in community engagements and environmental conservation efforts inva

parts of the country.

Outlook ]
The world economy i8 gxpected 10 remain robust in 2022 as the world copes better with Covid-191

d to grow at 4.4 per cent in 2022. Sub-Saharan Africa is

pandemic. The global economy 1 projecte

expected to grow by 3.8 percent in 2022.
On the domestic front, the country’s {NACTOECONOMIC environment 18 expected to remain stable in 2022
despite the tikelihood of rise in inflation, weakening of Kenya Shilling and substantial rise in €NETgY

prices. A slowdown in economic activities is expected in 2022 due to the clectioneering. The real gross

domestic product (GDP) is projected to grow by 6.0 percent in 2022 supported by recovery in agriculture,

industry and service sector.

nt of Kenya, through the Ministry of Industry, Trade and Enterprise
and Agencies that provided great support to the

Appreciation
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Development and all the Ministries, Staie departments

company during this period

To my fellow Board membets, 1 eXpress my gratitude for your priceless role and devotion to scale the

company to greater heights.

To our esteemed cusiomers, 1 express my highest regard for choosing the compaity as your number one

partner in your entreprencurship endeavours.
ent and staff for their steadfast and

mpetent, committed and dedicated managemt
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zation’s mandate.

indefatigable efforts towards the realization of organi
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MUTHONI KIMANI, MBS, EBS
CHAIRPERSON, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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V. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I am delighted to present Kenya Industrial Estates annual report for
the year ended 30th June 2022. This is a year which gave hope of
business recovery from the devastating effects of the COVID-19
pandemic. Our business was resilient amid the uncertain business
environment created by the pandemic and the organization was able
to post significantly better resulis compared {0 the previous period.

Our Purpose

Kenya Industrial Estates (KIE) exists for the sole purpose of
supporting industrialization through the development of Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises in the couniry. To execute our
mandate, KIE uses a multipronged approach; we provide the MSMEs with credit finance facilities,
Business and Technical Advisory Services {(BAS), incubation facilities and linkages with markets and

Technology.

Business Environmemnt
The Kenyan economy recovered from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic to expand by 7.5 per cent

in 2021 compared o a contraction of 0.3 per cent in 2020. The recovery was mainly driven by the
resumption of most economic activities after the lifting of the COVID-19 Containment measures
instituted in 2020. Key sectors of the economy recorded improved performance including:
Manufacturing (6.9%), wholesale and retail trade (7.9%), Real estate (6.7%), Transportation and storage
(7.2%), and Financial and Insurance services activities (12.5%). The couniry’s macroeconomic
environment is expected to remain stable in 2022 despite the likelihood of a rise in inflation, weakening
of the Kenyan shilling against its major irading currencies and a significant rise in energy prices. The
negative impact of covid-19 on the MSMEs continued to be felt with most MSMEs in need of working
capital to support their business recovery. Within the period under review, KIE rolled out targeted

programs to cushion MSMEs from adverse effects of the pandemic.

Business Performance
The company recorded a remarkable performance in its operations in the year 2021/2022 despite the

challenging business environment. The company provided credit to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises amounting to Kshs. 1.03 Billion in 2021/2022 compared to Kshs. 982.3 Million in
2020/2021, trained 56,854 entrepreneurs on business and technical skills in 2021/22 compared to 42,173
entrepreneurs in 2020/2021, and linked 5,624 enterprises to markets, source of raw materials and
technology in 2021/2022 compared to 4,312 linkages in 2020/2021.

Within the period under review, the company commenced implementation of the Kenya Indusiry and
Entrepreneurship Project (KIEP) whose objective is to increase innovation and productivity in private
sector firms with aim of benefiting an ecosystem of players.
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Financial Performance
During the period under review, the Company posted a pre-tax profit of Kshs.52.34 Million COMMpared

to a pre-~tax loss of Kshs. 23.27 Million in 2020/2021. Company assets increased to Kshs. 5.89 Billion ’
as at 30th June 2022 compared to Kshs. 5.23 Billion as at 30th June 2021, The company has reportegd
an increased profit and improved performance for the third year in a row signifying the sirategies put in

place in the recent past have begun to pay off.

Strategy
Our sirategy is anchored om four key result areas in line with our mandate of facilitating

Industrialization through development of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. These are:

Financing, ndustrial development, Business Advisory services and Institutional Development. The
strategy will gnide the company as we consolidate operational gains for growth and sustainability.

Our people
The organization’s good results would not have been possible without the commitment and hard work

important link in provision of services to our customers and

of our people. Cur employees are the most
development of all employees to

the company will continue to focus on capacity building and personal
ensure they bring out their best.

Outlook
The global economy is projected to remain robust as the world copes better with Covid-19 Pandemic.

Against this backdrop, the world trade is expecied to remain strong and therefore supportive of external

demand for Kenya goods and services.

The strategic efforts to de-risk the crucial Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) sector will
complement the organic rise in demand for credit from firms. Operational and credit risk will also abate
as pandemic related uncertainty wanes, providing more room for balance sheet expansion. Liquidity

risks will remain markedly subdued. This will create a favourable environment for KIE o support the

development of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises in the country.

//;Wzﬁ%ﬁ Mo Nakaa

DR. PARMAIN OLE NARIKAE, PhD, MBS
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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VL. STATEMENT OF PERFOMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR
FY 2021/2022

Section 81 Subsection 2 (£) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer
to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity’s performance
against predetermined objectives.
Kenya Industrial Estates has 4 strategic pillars/objectives and 5 strategic objectives within the current
Strategic Plan for the FY 2021-FY2023. These strategic pillars/objectives are as follows:
Piilar/Objective 1: F inancing
Pillar/Objective 2: Industrial Development (Infrastructure & Services)
Pillar/Objective 3: Business Advisory

Pillar/Objective 4: Institutional Strengthening

Kenya Industria] Estates develops its annual work plans based on the above 4 strategic pillars/objectives.
Assessment of the Board’s performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. Kenya

Industrial Estates achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2021/2022 period for its 4 strategic

pillars/objectives, as indicated in the diagram below: -

Pillar1: b Mobilize ~PAmounts b Mobilize Kshs 884.5 b Received of Kshs 884.5
Financing resources to mobilized billion from GoK and | million GoK grant and
finance (Kshs 198.4 million) | 241.71 Million from other
N o
organizational irom other sources sources.
activities I
° Increasing ° Amounts Disburse at Kshs. 1.0 p Disbursed Kshs 1.03
Disbursemenis | disbursed billion billion

°Create 30,000 jobs | Created 31,177 jobs
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Industrial availability of Industrial Parks | Counties unserved counties for
Development industrial developed ° 5 in high density development of indusirial
(Infrastructure | workspace for areas sheds/parks
& Services) MSMEs
» Accelerate the e Number of °300 e Incubated 20 MSMEs
growth of MSMEs
MSMEs from incubated and/or
Micro-small- scaled up
medium
Pillar 3: »Develop the eNo. Of »Train 43,400 ° Trained 56,854
Business Entrepreneurial | Entreprencurs entrepreneurs entreprencurs
Advisory Capacity of Reached; e Facilitate creation of pCreated 5,624 linkages
MSMEs 4,260 linkages
Pillar 4: Enhance Risk Compliance 100% e Fully complied with risk
Imstitutional RBlckTo ziati]argii;en ¢ management
Strengthening | Enhance Brand awareness | 100% e Participated in Kericho
Corporste lmage SME Expo 2021 held on
20-21 May 2022, at
Kericho Golf Club.
e 60 SMEs drawn from
Kericho County and the

larger North and South Riff
region exhibited in the
event.

° The company participated
in 3" SME Expo and
participated in Nakuru
ASK held on 29" June —
2™ July 2022.




Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022

I

FPrint and electronic media
presence (Newspaper
features and pictoria)
illustrations; Posts on
Twitter, Facebook and
YouTube)

° Rebranding of company
image: Launched new
corporaie colours, logo and
website on 16" September,
2022 officiated by Cabinet
Secretary of
Indusirialization, Trade and
Enterprise Development

e Traffic on social media has
continued to increase as we
update the public on.our
events, our day to day
operations and general
information on
enirepreneurship and SME
productivity, growth and

sustainability.

Efficient Service delivery | Improve loan °TAT of 40.17 days

Internal Systems | Turn Around dishursemest

and Processes Time (TAT)
turnaround time from

43.5 days to 42 days

Financial Profitability Post a pre-tax profit ¢ Achieved a Profit of Kshs
Sustainability | of Kshs 4.8 million 52,54 million

Return on 0.07%

Investment

(ROI)
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VII. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

To strengthen accountability and to build confidence among stakeholders, KIE is committed to sound
principles of corporate governance and sustainability. The Kenya Industrial Estates (KIE) Board of
Directors is responsible for the long term growth and the profitability of the company, whilst being
accountable to shareholders, compliance with the law and maintaining the highest standards of Corporate

Governance and business ethics.

The Organization has adopted high ethical standards and applies strict rules of conduct based on the best
corporate practices. As part of this commitment, the Board adheres to good corporate goveimance and

has embraced the following principles:

Observing high standards of ethical and moral behaviour;

L.

2. Acting in the best interest of the Company;

3. Remunerating and promoting fairly and responsibly;

4. Recognizing the legitimate interests of siakeholders;

5. Ensuring that the Company acts as a good corporate citizen.

The Board Charter spells out the roles, composition and responsibilities of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the highest governing body of the Company. The Board is appointed within
the provisions of Section 6 (1) (€) of the State Corporations Act. The Board exercises leadership,
enterprise integrity and judgement in directing the Organisation so as to achieve sustainability. The
Board, at all times, acts in the best interest of the Organisation and in a transparent manner with integrity,
accountability and responsibility. Removal of the members of the Board is done in accordance with the
provisions of Section 7 of the State Corporations Act or by resignation.

Role and Functions of the Board

In providing leadership and strategic direction to the Company, the Board is tasked wiih the following
key responsibilities:

1 Deterinining the business strategies, plans and policies that underpin the corporate sirategy;
Discussing and approving strategic plans, policies and annual budgets;

Continually monitoring the exercise of delegated power by management;

Ensuring that a comprehensive system of policies and procedures is in place and that appropriate
governance structures exist to ensure the smooth, efficient and prudent stewardship of the company;
Identifying and reviewing key risks, opportunities and strengths relating to the Company,

6. Ensuring that the company’s organisational structure and capability are appropriate for implementing

AW N

wn

the chosen strategies;
Setting policies on internal control and obtaining regular assurance that the system is functioning

effectively and is effective in managing risks;

Board mermbers are inducted and continuously trained to enrich their skills as they steer the Company

to higher levels. Their performance is evaluated yearly.
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In discharging their roles, the Board members are required to declare any conflict of interest or the

absence of the same in all matters.

Board members are also expected to continually adhere to the code of conduct and ethics as stipulated
in the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations. Governance audit is carried out to
promote appropriate ethics within the organisation.

Board Committees:

For efficient decision making by the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities, the following
Board Committees have been set up and meet under well-defined terms of reference.

1. Finance and Investment Committee;

2. Audit Committee;

3. Human Resource and Legal Committee;

4. Resource Mobilization Committee.

The Board defines terms of reference under which the respective Committee’s operate. The Company
Secretary is the secretary to all the Board Committees except the Audit Committee where the Head of
Internal Audit is the secretary. The Committees submit reports of their activities to the Board.

Finance and Investment Committee

The objective of the Committee is to provide leadership in the achievement of attractive returns on the
Company’s equity, to deliberate on the prudence of financial management and to review the asset mix
and volumes, return on investment in order to achieve the institution’s short-term and long-term goals.

The membership of the Finance and Investment Committee is as follows:

Mark Kebenei - Chairperson

Bob Karina

Agostinho Neto

Harriette Chiggai

Simon Atebe (Alternate to the Principal Secretary (PS), State Department for Industrialisation)
Geoffrey Mwitari (Alternate to the Cabinet Secretary, (CS), The National Treasury)

Lucas Kirui

HOSEE e

Audit Committee

This is an oversight Committee of the Board. The Committec assists the board in discharging its duties
relating to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems, control processes and the
preparations of accurate financial reporting and statements in compliance with all applicable legal
requirements and accounting standards. The Committee reviews and assess the integrity of the risk
control systems and ensure that the risk policies and strategies are effectively managed.

The membership of the Audit Committee is as follows:

1. Bob Karina - Chairperson
2. Agostinho Neto
3. Lucas Kirui
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Simon Atebe - (Alternate to the PS, State Department for Industrialization)
Geoffrey Mwitari (Alternate to the Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury)
Evelyn Waithira Mwithirania

Harriette Chiggai

No v

Human Resource and Legal Committee

The Committee’s principal objective is to recommend to the Board strategic directions in matiers relating
to HR and legal compliance.

The membership of the Human Resources and Legal Commiitee is as follows:
1. Evelyn Waithira Mwithirania - Chairperson
2. Bob Karina
3. Geoffrey Mwitari (Alternate to the Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury)
4. Lucas Kirui
5. Mark Kebenei

Resource Mobilization Committee

The Committee’s main objective of the Resource Mobilisation Committee is to create a pool of resources
to ensure adequate resources are available to fund KIE activities in the foreseeable future. The
Committee’s aim is to ensure that KIE is sustainable in the foreseeable future,

The membership of the Resource Mobilization Committee is as follows:

Neto Agostinho - Chairperson

Harriette Chiggai

Evelyn Waithira Mwithirania

Mark Kebenei

Simon Atebe - (Alternate to the PS, State Department for Industrialization)

e S

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors meets regularly as required in order to effectively and efficiently monitors the
implementation of the Company’s planned strategy, review it in conjunction with its financial
performance and business development and approve issues of strategic nature. Specific reviews are also
undertaken on operational issues and future planning.

The Notice and Agenda and detailed Board Papers of meetings are circulated on a timely basis to ensure
that the directors receive accurate, timely and clear information to enable them discharge their duties.

23



Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

The Board held 1 meeting during the year under review. The attendance was as follows:

Name Of Non-executive | Expected No. of meetings | No. of meetings | % Attendance
J Director in the year 2020/2021 attended

/ Muthoni Kimani 1 1 100%
Bob Karina 1 1 100%
Lukas Kirui 1 1 100%
Harriette Chiggai 1 1 100%
Mark Kebenei 1 1 100%
Evelyn Waithira 1 1 100%
Mwithirania )
Agostinho Neto 1 1 100%
Simon Atebe 1 1 100%
Geoffrey Mwitari 1 1 100%

Board Remuneration

Board members are remunerated in accordance with the relevant legislative provisions and/or guidance
by the State Corporations Advisory Committee. Details of Directors emoluments during the year are
shown on page 66 note 28 (c). Directors are entitled to sitting allowance for every meeting attended,
lunch allowance, subsistence allowance and mileage reimbursement where applicable within set limits.
In addition, the Chairman is paid a monthly honorarium.

Directors Shareholding

None of the Directors owns shares in the Company in their individual capacity.
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VIIL. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. Financial Performance
(a) Pre-tax
During the Financial year 2021/2022, the Company posted a pre-tax profit of Kshs.52.34 Million. This
compares to Kshs. 23.27 pre-tax profit for the last financial year, 2020/2021, a pre-tax profit of Kshs.
8.95 million for the finaneial year 2019/2020, a loss of Kshs 93.5 in the 2018/2019 financial year and 3
loss of Kshs 167.1 on the 2017/2018 financia] year. The overall Return on investment for the financial

year is 0.89%. )

Profit before Taxation Trend for the last five years

—
$278.9280.2
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The Company’s operating expenditure for the financial year under review was Kshs 503.50 million
compared Kshs. 499.87 in the last financial year,2020/2021, Kshs 454.21 million in the financial year
2019/2020, Kshs 487.45 million in the financial year 2018/2019 and Kshs 407.45 million in the
financial year 2017/2018. -

(b) Company Financial Position

The company total assets as at 30 June, 2022 stood at Kshs.5.89 Billion compared to Kshs. 5.23
Billion for the last financial year, 2020/2021, Kshs 4.5 Billion for the Financial Year 2019/2020,
Kshs 3.29 Billion for the 2018/2019 Financial year and Kshs 3.32 Billion for the 2017/2018 Financial
Year. The company current assets amounted Kshs 1.98 Billion compared to current liabilities of
Kshs 337.3 Million. Current assets for the same period last year amounted to Kshs. 1.47 Bilion
compared to Current liabilities of 333.7 Million. Current assets for financial year 2019/2020
amounted to Kshs.1.16 Billion while current liabilities for same period amounted to Kshs.327.8
s Billion. Current Assets for the financial year 2018/2019 were Kshs 333.3 Million while current
’ liabilities were Kshs 343.3 Million and for the Financial Year 20172018, current assets were Kshs
766.3 Million while current liabilities were Kshs® 1.57 Billion. The organizations financial position
has greatly improved as graphically shown below:
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2. Operations

KIE has products designed to meet the needs of customers. There was a marked improvement in
performance during the period under review compared to the previous period as demonstrated below:

a) Credit to SMEs: For the period under review, the company disbursed Kshs 1,028.9 Million to
SMEs. This compares to compares to Kshs. 982.30 Million in the financial year 2020/2021, Kshs.1222 .4
Million disbursed in the 2019/2020 Financial Year, Kshs 401.7 in the financial year 2018/2019 and Kshs
210.3 Million in the financial year 2017/2018. This is graphically depicted below.

b) Entrepreneurship Training: For the period under review, the company trained to 56,854 SMEs
across the country. This compares to 42173 SME’s trained in 2020/2021, 57150 SMEs trained in
201972020 Financial year, 43,924 trained in 2018/2019 Financial Year and 35,852 SME:s trained in the

2017/2018 Financial year as shown in the table below.
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.¢)  Linkages: For the period under review, the company recorded 30.89 % growth in linkages of
SMEs to large enterprises, market and suppliers of machinery. The company linked 5,624 SME’S
compared to, 4,312 SMEs in the previous year, 3,683 linkages in the financial year 2019/2020, 2,079
Linkages in the Financial year 2018/2019 and 1,349 Linkages in the Financial year 2017/2018. This is
depicted in the table below.

Linkages Trend from 2017/2018 to 2021/2022

5624
4312
13683 '
B30 et TR T
20170008 ooiBfroie (201302020 | 200002831 0 otgiyd0)
dEa el el e A e

3. Key projects and investment being implemented by KIE
The company is currently implementing one project namely Credit to Small and Medium Enterprises.

Credit to Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)

This project aims at providing affordable medium to long-term credit to SMEs in the manufacturing
sector which is core to the country vision of becoming a newly industrialized, globally competitive and
prosperous middle income country by year 2030. The total project cost is estimated at Kshs.5.35 Billion
and is being implemented up to 2024/2025. The expected outputs of the project are: Disbursement of
Kshs.5.35 Billion to SMEs, Creation of 10,700 new enterprises and Creation new 160,500 jobs. Other
benefits of the project are: Stimulating rural industrialization, Wealth Creation, Equitable distribution of
wealth, Support to Youth and Women, Value addition to local raw materials and increase in contribution
to government taxes by SMEs. The project is funded by Government of Kenya.

4. Major risks facing the company
The company's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the

business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance
by setting acceptable levels of risk. The major risks for the company are credit, liquidity market and
operational risk.

a) Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The

company’s credit risk is primarily atiributable to liquid funds and loans advanced to customers. The
company credit risk attributable to liquid funds is low because the counter parties are banks with high
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reputation. Credit risk attributable to Joans is managed through a framework that sets out policies and
procedures covering its measurement and management. The company has ensured clear segregation of
duties between transaction originators in the business (Filed officers and Business Development) and
approvers in the Risk Function. All credit exposure limits are approved within a defined credit approval
authority matrix. The company also manages its credit exposures through the principle of diversification
across products, geographical locations, industries and client segments. Potential credit losses from any
given account, client or portfolio are mitigated using a range of tools such as collateral, credit insurance

and guarantees.

b) Liquidity Risk Management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated

with financial liabilities. KIE’s Board of Directors have built a liquidity risk management framework
for managing the company short-term, medium and long-term funding requirements. KIE continuously
monitors forecasts and actual cash flows to ensure company’s liquidity requirements are met.

€) Market Risk Management
It is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices

will affect KIE. KIE currently is not actively affected by foreign exchange risk and equity/commodity
prices due to iis nature of business.

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows because of a change in
market interest rates which affects KIE’s investment. KIE interest rate regime is fairly stable and not

driven by on-going market dynamics.

d) Operational Risk
Operational risk is the potential for loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people

and systems or from the impact of external events. The management of operational risk is a challenge
due to its broad scope as operational risks arise from all activities carried out within KIE. KIE
endeavours to discuss all operational risks with department heads and unit managers to ensure
effective controls are in place with a review at least once 2 year.

S. Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations
The company has no material arrears in statutory and financial obligations.

6. Company’s compliance with statutory requirements
The company does not have any governance issues among the Board or members of fop management.

Further there is no conflict of interest.
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IX. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Kenya Industrial Estates exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind
everything we do. It is what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the customer/citizen first, delivering
relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below are an outline of the
organization’s policies and activities that promote sustainability.

(.  Sustainability Strategy and profile
Kenya Industrial Estates (KIE) is committed to creating a long-term value for our Stakeholders in all the
areas we operate. As we deliver on our mission, we also seek to ensure our sustainability, our customers’
sustainability and environmental sustainability. We are a responsible corporate citizen who is committed
to responsible and ethical business practices. We ensure our customers derive value from our
. relationship, our staffs are nurtured to bring out their best and a robust relationship is maintained with
our partners.

As an organization operating in various parts of the country, we are concerned with the environment,
social and governance issues affecting our staff and the communities in the areas we conduct our
activities. Our mandate of supporting Industrialization through development of Small and Medium
Enterprises (SMEs) is aligned to sustainable Development Goal (SDG) No.9 on building resilient
infrastructure; promote inclusive and sustainable industrialization and further innovation. We are also
actively involved in sensitizing our customers on climate change.

Our focus areas for sustainability agenda are our Business model, Environment, Our employees, market
place practices and community engagement.

(if).  Business Model

Kenya Industrial Estates supports the development of Small and Medium Enterprises in the
manufacturing and value addition sector to facilitate their sustainability and growth. KIE supports the
enterprises through provision of credit finance, incubation facilities, and Business Advisory services and
through market linkages. By KIE nurtures the enterprises in order to accelerate their graduation from
small to medium and large enterprises. KIE is keen to ensure the supported businesses operate in a safe
environment; they are screened to avoid negative impact to the environment, human health, safety,
security and biodiversity.

(iii)  Environmental Performance

Kenya Industrial Estates is a responsible corporate citizen committed to the conservation of the
environment, prevention of pollution, effective waste management, minimization of consumption of
resources and overall environmental degradation in all our business operations.

We recognize environmental protection as one of the guiding principles and a key component of sound
business performance. We are committed to providing quality products and services as we promote and
embrace the principle of responsible stewardship of the natural environment.

' Kenya Industrial Estates strives to adhere to all applicable environmental regulations. To implement and
maintain a structured Environmental Management System based on the continual improvement. We
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educate our employees, clients, suppliers and other stakeholders on environmental protection and
empower them to participate and contribute to environmental conservation. 1

Kenya Industrial Estates is committed to support SMEs to adapt to climate change. We are in partnership
with Pan-African Climate Alliance to support SMEs to mainstream climate change in their operations
and to enable them to transition to low-carbon, climate resilient, green development.

During the Financial year 2021/2022, the company undertook trees planting activities across our
various branches with the aim of restoration sites and natural areas. More than 1,800 trees were planted
in Ontulili, Timau in Mery County and our Kakamega, Busia, Voi, Embu, Machakos and Malindi
offices.

(iv). Employee Welfare

The company is committed to nurturing talent to bring the best out of each employee. Employees are the
most important asset for the company and form the base upon which the company delivers services to
the public. On recruitment, we are guided by the Constitution, labour laws, our Human Resource marnual
and best practice. To maintain and attract 'talem, we continue to ensure a conducive working

environment.
Gender Equality

The company is committed to provide equal opportunity for all genders and promote diversity at all
levels of management. The gender-disaggregated ratio for the period was 55% Male and 45% Female,

Capacity Building

On Capacity Building, we systematically enhance our staff skills to address career progression of
‘individual employees and improve institutional performance. During the period under review, the
company executed some fraining interventions to address gaps identified in the training needs

assessment.

Employee Engagement
Having engaged employees is critical to the achievement our strategic goals. We have undertaken to

take on board all our employees’ views. To ensure this materializes, employees are encouraged to give
their views openly.

Occupational Safety and Health
The Company continues to ensure implementation of Occupational safety and Health Act, 2007. We

undertook Continuous monitoring of work environment based on regular risk assessment and conducted
safety training to staff to ensure adherence to safety precautions.

(v).  Market Place Practises

Kenya Industrial Estates conducts its businesses in a responsible and ethical manner and strives to follow
these general principles; Honesty, F airness, Respect for customers, suppliers, employees, and
competitors. KIE through its zero tolerance to corruption promotes transparency and integrity in all its
operations.

The organization ensures responsible competition practice by all suppliers in line with Public
Procurement and Disposal Act 2015, to undergo a rigorous process of assessment of their social,
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environmental and ethical performance that increases reliability of the supply chain, conserves our
planet's natural resources, and protects the people who work for and with us. At KIE, we believe that
what we do and how we do it are equally important which is why we’ve put responsible, sustainable
sourcing practices into place, guided by the procurement act, throughout our supply chain and made
them an integral part of our strategy.

Kenya Industrial Estates seeks to promote marginalized groups (Women, Youth and Persons living with
Disabilities) to access Government Procurement opportunities. In the period 2021/22, KIE trained youth,
women and persons living with disabilities (PWD) on accessing government procurement opportunities.
These group benefited from procurement opportunities worth Ksh. 23.51 Million. KIE also Promotes
Buy Kenya Build Kenya initiative through its procurement process and committed 40% of its
procurement budget to this endeavor.

In marketing and communications, KIE is committed to responsible advertising in compliance with the
existing laws and national and regional standards. KIE ensures that its marketing communications are
legal, decent, honest, and truthful, with claims having a sound scientific basis. We are committed to
promoting our products in a socially acceptable manner. At the heart of our marketing is safeguarding
consumer rights and interests.

Community Engagements

At Kenya Industrial Estates, we are committed to integrating responsible business practices into all our
activities, not just with words and statements, but also with action and deeds. With our Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) commitment, we aim to positively impact the workplace, the marketplace, the
environment and the community.

32




e i

Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

X. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2021 which show the state of the company’s affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the company are t0 promote and facilitate industrialisation through the
provision of credit facilities, business development services and industrial work spaces.

Results

The results of the company for the year ended June 30, 2022 are set out on page 35.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend dividends.

Directors -

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page 3.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the company in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

M e ST

Charity
Manager, Legal & Company Secretary
Nairobi

Date ;z;%/ Q/ 2022
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XI. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fajr presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are
iree from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the
Company; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Company’s financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner required by the
PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company’s
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Company’s transactions during the financial
year ended June 30, 2022, and of the Company’s financial position as at that date. The Directors further
confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Company, which have been relied
upon in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of
internal financial contro]. v

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the company will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Kenya Industrial] Estates Ltd financial statements were approved by the Board on

29 é 9 ﬁ 2022 and signed on its behalf by: i,

P (/7 i P

MUTHONI KIMANI DR NARIKAE, PhD, MBS \
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTATES LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022 :

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements which considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations which have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazetie notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Industrial Estates Limited
set out on pages 36 to 77, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2022 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Industrial Estates Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022




statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison 0
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and 3 summary of signiﬁcam“

In my opinion, except for the effects of matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Kenya Industrial Estates Limited as at 30 June, 2022 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Public Finance
Management Act, 2012 and the Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Un-Supported Land Ownership

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 11(c) to the financial
statements indicates several parcels of land measuring 47.9937 which have no title

documents. As reported previously, available information indicates that the process of —

acquiring titles for these land parcels has been underway for significantly long duration.
Management has indicated that they are pursuing the National Lands Commission to
process and issue the ownership documents. However, by the time of concluding this
audit the title deeds were yet to be issued.

In the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm the rightful ownership of these parcels
of land, and there is the risk of encroachment by private developers.

2. Long Outstanding Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of

this balance is an amount of Kshs.101,012,000 on payables which have been outstanding
for more than five (5) months. Further, included in the balance of payables is a balance
of Kshs.46,083,000 which relates to retention money, which has been outstanding for
more than six (6) months, implying that payments due to contractors and suppliers have
been delayed for periods which is beyond the defect liability period of six (6) months.

In the circumstances, effectiveness in use of public resources could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Kenya Industrial Estates Limited
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Industrial Estates Limired Jor the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Ilssues

In the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements and Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources. However, Management has indicated that the issues have remained
unresolved as Parliament has not met to deliberate on the same.

Other Information

The Directors aré responsible for the other information, which comprises the Chairman’s
Report, Report of the Chief Executive Officer, Statement of Performance against
Predetermined Objectives, Corporate Governance Statement, Environmental and
Sustainability Report, Report of the Directors, and Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities. The other information does not include the financial statements and my
auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities which
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Tndusirial Estates Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
As required by Companies Act, 2015, 1 report based on audit, that:

i. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

. In my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so
far as appears from the examination of those records; and,

i The Company’s financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.
Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors _—

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financia| Reporting Standards and for

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Report of the Auditor-General on X, enya Industrial Estates Limited Jor the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report which includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls
will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(B) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control which
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts which would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Company policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence which is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Industrial Estates Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audjt findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control which are identified during the audit.

I'also provide Management with g statement that | have complied with releyant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
Where applicable, related safeguards.

Nairobi

30 March, 2023

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Industriol Estates Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 '
3. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER C@WREHENSIW INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 307 JUNE, 2022

Note 2022 2021
Kshs’000 Kshs’000
REVENUES
Revenue 208,949 174,991

Grants from National Government (2) 280,240 279,540

SL N

Finance Income 33,579 33,557
Other Income 33,074 35,046
TOTAL REVENUES 555,842 523,134
o [
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration Costs 5 503,501 499,865
I S
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 503,501 499,865
o S
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 52,341 v 23,269
Less Taxation (Tax Charge) 7 3,457 5,114
o R
PROFIT/LOSS AFTER TAXATION 48,384 18,155
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 8 12 5
Dividend per share 9 - =

—_—
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4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE, 2022

Note 2022 2021
Kshs’000 Kshs’000

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 812,265 838,919
Leasehold Land 12 489,394 493,652
Intangible assets 13 9,496 9,496
Investment property 14 998,585 998,585
Unquoted investments 15 - -
Staff receivables due afier one year 18(b) 28,918 31,943
Loans 16 1,568,046 1,392,817
Tetal Non-Current Assets 3,906,704 3,765,412
Current Assets

Inventories 17 6,390 6,354
Trade and other receivables 18(a) 220,009 54,445
Cash and Bank balances 19 1,755,119 1,407,791
Total Current Assets 1,981,518 1,468,590
Total Assets 5888222 5234002

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves

Ordinary share capital 20 80,277 80,277
Reserves 21 5,435,025 4,784,464
Capital and Reserves 5,515,302 4,864,741
Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liability 23 35,608 35,608
Total Nen-Current Liabilities 35,608 35,608
Current Liabilities

Borrowings 22 218,518 218,518
Trade and other payables 24 113,548 109,889
Provision for leave pay 26 5,246 5,246
Total Current Liabilities 337,312 4 333,653
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,888,222 5,234,002

/fé> The financial statements were approved by the Board on 2 q / E j 2022 and signed on jts behalf by:

a N 73 7
N A & "' £ /‘, - P et
2 e = - {5 TEd o
DK. Parmain ole Narijae CPA Charlls M. Mativo Muthoni Kimani
Managing Director Finance Manager Board Chairperson

ICPAK No.3736
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Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

6. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2022
Note 2022 2021
Kshs’000 Kshs’000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 277(a) (282,358) (427,777)
Interest received 3 33,579 33,557
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (24?,779) (SM)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 8,527) (14,363)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities (8,527) (14,363)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

GOK Development Grant 2(b) 604,634 712,15
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities 604,634 712,153
INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 347,328 303,570

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 27(b) 1,407,791 1,104,221

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 27(b) 1,755,119 1,407,791

Note: Disclosure on changes in Financing Cash flow is on note 277 (c)
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7. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNT FOR
THE PERIOD ENDED 30™ JUNE, 2022

Original | Adjustments Final Actual on | Performance | Percentage | Explanation
budget Budget | comparable difference (%) on material
basis variance variances
2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022
Revenue Shs'000' Shs'000' Shs'600' Shs'000* Shs'000"
Interest Income 135,585 135,585 144,497 8,912 6%
Grant from
National
Government 250,240 30,000 280,240 280,240 - -
Rent Income 60,407 - 60,407 64,452 4,045 6%
Other Income 40,777 40,777 33,074 (7,703) -23% | (a)
Finance Income 28,502 28,502 33,579 5,077 15% | (b)
Total income 515,511 30,000 545,511 555,842 19,331 2%
Expenses
Compensation to
Employees 323,200 - 323,200 309,223 13,977 5%
Use of Goods and
Services 140,190 - 140,190 125,303 14,887 12%
Rent Paid 5,352 5,352 4,853 499 10%
Amortization and
Depreciation 39,921 - 39,921 39,439 482 1%
Provision write
off 2,000 - 2,000 24,683 (22,683) -92% | (c)
Taxation paid - - - 3,457 (3,457) -
Total
Expenditure 510,663 - 516,663 506,958 3,705 1%
Net Profit / Loss
for the Period 4,848 30,000 34,848 48,884 6,626 100%

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO MAJOR VARIANCES

(a) Other Income-: This was a result lower income from Business Advisory services than
anticipated -

(b) Finance Income-: The achievement was higher than anticipated.

(¢} Provision Write-off- This was portfolio clean-up which was concluded within the year

(d) Use of goods and services- Cost Management measures during the year resulted in some
savings in the use of goods and services.
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8. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
KIE is established by and derives its authority and accountability from the Companies Act. The
company is wholly owned by the Govermnment of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The
company’s principal activity is to promote and facilitate industrialization through provision of
credit facilities, business development services and industrial workspace.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement
of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and
financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) allows the use of estimates ___
and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying ’
the Kenya Industrial Estates Ltd accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

statements, are disclosed in note 5-(I-VII).

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand (Kshs’000).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERANTIONAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS)

i) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the yaer —
ended 30 June 2022.

(a) Amendments to IAS 37 titled Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (issued

in May 2020)

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous,
the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. They
are effective for contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations on or

after 1 January 2022.
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The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or gjfter January 1, 2022.

Early application is permitted
(b) Amendment to IFRS 9 titled Fees in the “10 per cent “Test for De-recognition of
Financial Liabilities.
The amendment, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, to IFRS
9 clarifies the fees that a company includes when assessing whether the new terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. The amendments are effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
January 1 2022

(¢) Amendment to IAS 41 titled Taxation in Fair Value Measurements (issued in May 2020
as part of the Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020)

The amendment, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, to
IAS 41 removed the requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring fair

value.
The amendmenis are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January, 2022.

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year
ended 30 June 2022

(a) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (issued in May 2017)

The new standard, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023,
establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar principles to be applied to reinsurance
contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary participation features issued.
The objective is to ensure that entities provide relevant information in a way that faithfully
represents those contracts. The Company does not issue insurance contracts.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

(b) Amendment to IAS I titled Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(issued in January 2020) .
The amendments, clarify a criterion in IAS 1 for classifying a liability as a non-current:
the requirement for an entity to have the right to defer settlement of the ability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2023

(c) Amendments to IAS I titled Disclosure of Accounting policies issued in February 2021)
The amendments applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023,
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(d) IAS 12 — Income Taxes
IAS 12, “Income taxes” implements a so-called ‘comprehensive balance sheet method’ of

accounting for income taxes which recognizes both the current tax consequences of
transactions and events and the future consequences of the future recovery or settlement
of the carrying amount of an entity’s assets and liabilities, Differences between the
carrying amount and tax base of assets and liabilities, and carried forward tax losses and
credits, are recognized, with limited exceptions, as deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets, with the latter also being subject to a ‘probable profits’ test,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods on or affer January 1, 2023,

(e) 145 8 —Accounting Policies Errors and Estimates
The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1% January 2023,
introduce a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and include other amendments to JAS §
to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting

estimates.

The amendmenis are effective jor the annual reporting periods beginning on or after January I,
2023

The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their
assessment of the potential impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will
be a significant impact on the company's financial Statements.

i) Early adoption of Standards.

Kenya Industrial Estates did not early adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021-2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future econormic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognised at
the fair value of consideration received or expected to be received in the ordinary course of
the Company’s activities, net of value-added tax (VAT), where applicable, and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below.

i)  Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised in the year in which the
Company delivers products to the customer, the customer has accepted the products
and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

- i Grants from National Government are recognised in the year in which the
Company actually receives such grants. Recurrent grants are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income. Capital grants received and are meant for capital
projects are amortized and recognized as grants income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The amortized amount is transferred from GOK capital fund
to retained earnings under the Statement of Changes in Equity each year. This is in
line with IAS 20. Also, the Development/ Capital grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position

iii) Finance income comprises interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in
securities, and is recognised in profit or loss on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest rate method.

iv) Dividend income is recognised in the income statement in the year in which the right
to receive the payment is established.

v)  Rental income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues using the effective
lease agreements.

vi) Other income is recognised as it accrues.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Where re-measurement at re-valued amounts is desired, all
items in an asset category are re-valued through periodic valuations carried out by independent
external valuers.
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Increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other

comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of the
Same asset are charged against the revaluation Teserve account; all other decreases are charged

to profit or loss in the income Statement.

comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and are
recognised in profit or loss in the income statement.

¢) Depreciation and Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress relates
mainly to the costs of on-going but incomplete works on buildings and other civil works and

installations.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residua]

value over itg estimated useful life.

The annual rates in use are:

Buildings and civil works - 40 years or the unexpired lease period
Plant and machinery 12.5 years

Motor vehicles, including motor cycles 5 years

Computers and related equipment 5 years

Office equipment 12.5 years

Office furniture and fittings 10 years

d) Depreciation and Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the

carrying amount of an asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an had

¢) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software licences, which are capitalised on the
basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software,

These costs are amortised over the estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the year that
they are available for use over ten years.
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f) Amortisation and Impairment of Intangible Assets

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of computer

software over years.

All computer software is reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an
intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss
is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.

g) Investment Property

Buildings, or part of a building (freehold or held under a finance lease) and land (freehold or
held under an operating lease) held for long term rental yields and/or capital appreciation, and

-~ which are not occupied by the Company, are classified as investment property under non-
current assets.

Investment property is carried at fair value, representing open market value determined
periodically by independent external values. Changes in fair values are included in profit or loss
in the income statement.

h) Unguoted Investments

Ungquoted investments are stated at cost under non-current assets, and comprise equity shares
held in other Government owned or controlled entities.

i)  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
comprises purchase price, import duties, transportation and handing charges, and is determined
on the moving average price method.

D Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. These are assessed for impairment on 2 continuing basis. An estimate is made of
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts
are written off after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

k) Taxation
Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities.
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enacted as at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in net
assefs is recognised in net assets and not in the financial performance,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets ig reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank. Bank account balances

include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of the financia] year.

m) Borrowings

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of issue
costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue
cost and any discount or premium on settlement.

Finance charges, including premiums payable of settlement or redemption are accounted for on
accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are
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not seftled in the period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction ofa
project is capitalised as part of the cost of the project.

n) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortised cost, which is
measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future in
respect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the Company or not, less any
payments made to the suppliers.

o) Retirement Benefit Obligations

= The company operates a defined contribution scheme for all full-time employees from July 1,
2011. The scheme is administered by an in-house team and is funded by contributions from

both the company and its employees.

The company also confributes t0 the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is
a defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The
company’s obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from
time to time and is currently at Kshs.200 per employee per month.

p) Provision for Staff Leave Pay

Employees’ entitlements 10 annual leave are recognised as they accrue at the employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

q) Exchange Rate Differences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign
currencies during the year/period are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Any foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seftlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised as in profit or loss.

r) Budget Information
The original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Assembly. Subsequent
revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with
specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added
to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to
conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional appropriations of
Kshs.30.0 Million the 2021-2022 budget following the governing body’s approval.
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The entity’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial
statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by
presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and
actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis
difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences
in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial
statements and the approved budget.
A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under section xxx of these financial statements,

s) Comparative Figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

t) Subsequent Events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on
the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022

u)  Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

The organization applies the banking regulations issued by the Central Bank on risk
classification for loans and provisioning for bad and doubtful loans, using prudential
guidelines as shown in table below:

Category Classification Provisioning

A Normal class (0-30 days) general provision of 1% of loan balance

B Watch class (31-90 days) general provision of 2% of loan balance

C Sub-standard class (91-180 days) 20% of loan balance less suspended interest .
D Doubtful class (181-365 days) 100% of loan balance less suspended interest

E Loss class (365 days) 100% of loan balance less security

3. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINITY
Critical Accounting Estimates and J udgements

In the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies, management has made
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The key area of judgement in applying the entities accounting policies is dealt with below:

I.  Impairment Losses

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation reviews the carrying amounts of its
financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event”) and that the loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Corporation
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

II. Provision for Ex-staff Imprests and Advances

The company makes estimates of doubtful receivables in relation to ex-staff imprest and advances
and makes provision based on the estimates. Bad debts in relation to ex-staff and advances are
written off after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

IIT. Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances

The estimation of potential credit losses is inherently uncertain and depends upon many factors,
including general economic conditions, changes in individual customers’ circumstances,
structural changes within industries that alter competitive positions and other external factors such
as legal and regulatory requirements. Impairment is measured for all accounts that are identified
as non-performing. All relevant considerations that have a bearing on the expected future cash
flows are taken into account which include but not limited to future business prospects for the
customer and realizable value of security.

Subjective judgements are made in this process of cash flow determination both in value and
timing and may vary from one person to another. Judgements may also change with time as new
information becomes available.

The company review its loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an allowance
for impairment should be recognized in profit or loss. Judgement is required in the estimation of
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the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. |
Such estimates are based on assumptions on a number of factors. :

IV. Income Taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax balances and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus
or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net
assets. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to

the same taxable company and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities against current tax assets and they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable company or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. In determining the amount of current and deferred
tax, the Group considers the impact of tax exposures, including whether additional taxes and
interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series
of judgments about future events.

New information may become available that causes the company to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities would impact tax
expense in the period in which such a determination is made.
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V. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over ifs useful life taking into consideration
residual values. Critical estimates are made by management in determining the depreciation rates
based on reasonable estimates of the useful life of the assets.

VI. Going Concern

The Board of Directors and Management have evaluated the going concern status of the company
and have no reason to believe the company will not be in operation in the next financial year
because the company is funded by the Government through budgetary allocations. In making this
judgement the directors and management have made reasonable estimates and judgement on the
budgetary allocation expected from government.

Vil. Related Parties

In the normal course of business, the company has entered into transactions with related parties.
The related party transactions are at arm’s length.
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2022 2021
Kshs’000  Kshs’000
1. REVENUE
Interest income from loans 144,497 114,908
Rent income 76,729 70,702
Less: VAT on rent (12,277) (10,619)
208,949 174,991
2. GRANTS FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
(a) Recurrent grants received 280,240 279,540
(b) Capital grants received 604,634 712,153
Name of the Amount Amount Amount Total grant j
Entity sending recognized to deferred | recognised in income | 2020-2021
the grant Statement of under capital fund during the -
Comprehensive deferred year
Income income
Ksh’000 Kshs’000 Kshs’000
Kshs’000 Kshs;000
State 280,240 280,240 279,540
Department of
Investment and
Industry
Total 280,240 280,240 279,540
3. FINANCE INCOME
Interest from commercial banks 33,579 33,557
33,579 33,557
4. OTHER INCOME ~
Commissions & charges 4,091 4,687
Sale of tender documents 20 13
Business Development Services Income 18,761 21,896
Miscellaneous receipts 10,202 8.450
33,074 35,046
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5. ADMINISTRATION COSTS

2022 2021
Kshs’000  Kshs’000

Staff costs (Note 5a) 309,223 278,677
Directors’ emoluments (Note 6b) 20,728 15,219
Electricity and water 3,839 5,612
Communication services and supplies 14,757 15,074
Transportation, travelling and subsistence 22,945 24,906
Advertising, printing, stationery and photocopying 17,432 16,147
Rent and Rates expenses : 4,853 4,081
Hospitality supplies and services ' 351 17
Insurance costs 9,462 9,304
e Bank charges and commissions 1,702 1,769
Office and general supplies and services 6,722 7,331
Auditors’ remuneration 600 696
Legal fees 4,053 15,883
Consultancy fees 604 -
Repairs and maintenance 3,805 1,023
Other operating expenses 18,303 20,121
Depreciation & Amortization (Note 12-14) 39,439 41,865
Prov. for bad and doubtful debts (Note 6) 24.683 42,140

503,501 499,865

5(a) STAFF COSTS

Salaries and allowances of permanent employees 241,181 220,730
Staff Training Expenses 11,948 5,185
Medical Expenses 30,099 28,262
— Fringe benefit tax 315 231
Staff Welfare - -
Wages of temporary employees 1,978 1,649
Compulsory national social security schemes 1,032 525
Other pension contributions 21,182 20,607
Leave pay and Gratuity provisions 1.488 1,488

309,223 278,677

The average number of employees at the end of the year was:

Permanent employees — Management 21 15
Permanent employees — Technical and Support Staff 189 198
Temporary and contract employees 2 2

212 215
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2022 2021
Kshs’000  Kshs’000

S(b) DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

Sitting Allowances 7,998 5,982
Honoraria 1,044 1,044
Other Allowances 11,686 8,193
20,728 15,219
5(c) PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS
Provision for bad debts & doubiful debts (24,683) (42,140) »

(24,683) (42,140

KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTATES LTD

PROVISION FOR BAD & DOUBTFUL DEBTS 2021/2022
Leave Rent write

Type of provisions Loans provision  provision off Total

Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000  Kshs'000

General provision 270) - - (270)
Specific provision (24,413) - - (24,413)
Total Provision (24,686) (-) ) (-) (24,683)
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6. OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS)
2022 2021

Kshs’000 Kshs’000
The operating profit / (loss) is arrived at, after charging/ (crediting):

Staff costs (note 6b) 309,223 278,677
Amortization and Depreciation (Note 10&12) 39,439 41,865
Directors’ Emoluments (Note 5b) 20,728 15,219
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (Note 5¢) 24,683 42,140
Auditors® remuneration - current year fees 600 696
Other administrative expenses 108,828 121,268
Government current grant (280,240) (279,540)
Interest receivable (Note 1) (144,497) (114,908)
Rent receivable (Notel) (64,452) (60,083)
Finance Income (Note3) (33,579) (33,557)
Other Income (Note 4) (33,074) (35,046)
Profit Before Taxation 52,341 23,269
7 TAXATION
Current Tax 3,457 5,034
Deferred Tax Credit/ Charge - 30
3,457 5,114

The tax on the company's (loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the basic rate as follows:

Profit / Loss before Tax _ 52,341 23.269
Tax calculated at rate of 30% (2020: 25%) 15,702 6,981
Tax effect of:
o - Income not subject to tax -) )
Tax losses carried forward (15,702) (6,901)
Tax charge / credit - 80

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 2021/2022 profit after tax of Kshs. 48,884,000
(profit before tax for 2020/2021: Kshs. 18,155,000.00) by the average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year of 4,013,865 (ordinary share in issue 2020/2021: 4,013,865). There were
no dilutive or potentially dilutive ordinary
share as at the reporting date.
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9 DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Proposed dividends are acc
ratified and declared at the
before the end of 2022, no dividend
just like year 2021 when no dividen

ounted for as a separate component of equity until they have been

relevant Annual General Meeting (AGM). At the AGM to be held
in respect of the year ended June 30, 2022 shall be proposed

d was proposed.

57




S9TTI8 060°95€ TLE'ST 8¥8°81 LYT'SE 1L8°0€ L8SSYE 70T ‘0 dunp 1y
SANTVA 004 LAN
POE'LEE - 9ST°9€ €16°SE LS0°86 ThE'8E 9¢8°8CT 2207 ‘oS dunp 1y
181°GE - L88°CT 89L°1 11E%1 SLYT 0vL el Teak oY) JoJ a81ey)
€T1°20¢ . 69T €€ SYIve 9YL°ES L98°S€ 960°S11 1202 ‘1 AV
NOILVIDHAJAd
69S°6VT'T | 060°9SE 8LV'T9 19L%S POE EET €169 STLYLY 770T ‘0 dunf 1y
- = - - 2 - - spaunsnlpy
LTSS - €6€C 88€°1 - 758 768°¢ SUOTIPPY
T TYI’T 060°95€ $80°6S €LEES y0E°EeT 19€°89 6T8°0LY 1207 T AInf 1V
NOILLVOTVA J0O ISOD
000543 000SUS>{ 000.SUS3] 000.5YSH 000.54S3I 000.SUS3 000.5Us3]

MTYILOL ssaa80xd wr sSuy 1uawrdinba S3[24d youdinibs SHIOM JIALD i

yaom jesde) 79 2JNJIUINY palejaU JOI0W ‘Suipnidul VPO psSurppng o
79 sxoyndwo) “SI[OIYA L0IOTA]

INTAJINOA ANV INVTd ‘ALIAJOAd 01

(ponunuo)) SINHAALYLS TYIONVNIA HHL OL SHLON

-.

7707 ‘0€ dUN PIPUD JBIA Y O]
sjuomidjelS [euEul] pue sprodoy

panuy Saawissy [urasnpuy vduayy




£8€°101

%01 = sSuI pue xmrwm g
%02 £€9°6¢ juawdinbs poyejor pue s1omnduon)
%02 05,19 SS[0AD JO10W Jurpnour ‘soporyoa JOJ0TA]
%S'Cl . uswdinbe eo1330)
a3reyo uonenye A
uonerosaidop Jo 31509
[enuuy
[eUuLIon
‘paredaidop Afjng oxe et Swe)r Furmoroy ayy spnpout yuswdmbs pue juejd ‘Auedorg
[ 616°8¢8 060°95¢ 9I8'sT 8¢T°61 8SS‘6h (AL €EL'SSS I20T ‘o€ sung 3y
SANTVA M00d LAN
€TIT0E - 69C°¢cs SYI‘pe 9pL €S L98°SE 960°STI 120T ‘0€ sung 3y
0LL*9E - 120v ev'l [1EPT SELT [LTY1 TeaL oty 10 981wy
£5€°697 . 8¥2°67 £1L'ze SEV69 zer'ee $T8°001 020T ‘1 AInf 1y
NOLLVIDTIJdHA
WO'IYT'T | 060°9S¢ £80°6S €LEES POEECT 19€°89 6C8°0LY 1207 ‘0€ dung 3y
- - = = = - - syusunsnlpy
T - - (4AN4 - IvTCI - suonippy
6L9°9C1°T | 060°9s¢ $80°6S ISZ°16 vOEEET 0Z1°9¢ 6C8°0LY 0T0T ‘1 AInf 1y
NOILVATVA 0 IS0D
000.54s3y 000.sYys3| 000.5Ys3] 000.54s31 000 .5Ys3y 000.54s3y 000.54Ss3]
TYIOL ssaagoad uy sSuny juowdinba $3[24d juswdinbs SHA0M JIALD
Yyiom jesrden) 79 ANJIULINY pazefox Jojou ‘Surpnyou DYIO psIuIpping L4114
7 sipnduo;y ‘SI[YDA J0JOTA]

(penunuo)) SINAWHLY.LS TVIDONVNIA TELL Ol SHLON

20T ‘0€ sunp papuo aeak oy A0
Sjustale)g [eoueury pue spioday

D3] $31€)ST [eLusnpuy ehuoyy




&
RS

Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. (b) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:

Normal Annual

Cost or Valuation Depreciation Charge

Kshs’000 Kshs’000

Office Equipment - 12.5%
Motor vehicles, including motor cycles 61,750 20%
Computers & Related Equipment 39,633 20%
Fumniture & Fittings - 10%
101,383 -

11. (¢) LAND WITHOUT TITLE DOCUMENTS
The company has 47 pieces of land measuring 47.9928 hectares which have no title documents. These are
shown in annexure V. The company is pursuing the National Land Commission for the issuance of the title

documents.

12. LEASEHOLD LAND
2022 2021

Kshs’000  Kshs’000

COST

tJuly 1 537,335 537,335
Elimination - -
Revaluation - =
Additions - -
Adjustments - -

At June 30 537,335 537,335

AMORTISATION

AtJuly 1 43,683 39,263
Elimination .
Charge for the year 4,258 4,420
Disposals - -
Impairment loss - -

At June 30 47,941 43,683

NET BOOK VALUE
At June 30 489,394 493,652
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13.

14.

For the year ended June 30, 2022

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST
At July 1
Additions
Disposals

At June 30

AMORTISATION

At July 1

Charge for the year
Disposals

Depreciation Adjustment

At June 30

NET BOOK VALUE at June 30

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Opening valuation

Movements during the year
Transfer from WIP

Additions

Adjustments

Disposal

Tair value gains/ (Losses)

Closing valuation

AMORTISATION
At July 1

Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment loss

At June 30

NET BOOK VALUE
At June 30
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2022
Kshs’000

48,126

48,126

098,585

998,585

998,585

2021
Kshs’000

9,496

998,585

998,585

998,585
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15.

16.

17.

18 (a)

UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS

At 30 1% July 2021 :

Investment in shares — Available-for-sale
Less Provisions

Investment as at 30 June 2022

At 1% July 2020:

Investment in shares — Available-for-sale
Less Provisions

Investment as at 30™ June. 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Level 1
Kshs ‘000

Level 2 Level 3 Total
Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000

11,200
(11.200)

S LS _————

11.200
(11.200)

The unquoted investment relates to investment of 440,000 non-cumulative preferenc
at Consolidated Bank of Kenya Ltd.

each and 120,000 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 each

LOANS

Loan gross

Interest suspended
Specific provision
General provision

Net loan balance

INVENTORIES

Stationery and general stores
Less: Impairment of stock

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIV ABLES

Trade receivables
Staff receivable (note 18 (c)

Gross trade and other receivables
Provision for bad and doubtful receivabies

Net trade and other receivables
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2022
Kshs’000

1,753,939
(134,899)
(51,678)
681

1,568,046

366,173
3,687

369,860
(149,851)

220,009

e shares of Kshs.20

2021
Kshs’000

1,520,014
(101,253)
(26,829)
885

1,392,817

201,232
3,354

204,586
(150,141)

54,445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2022 2021

Kshs’000 Kshs’000

At June 30, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables was as follows:

Less than 30 days 161,166 26,802
Between 31 and 60 days 15,554 1,495
Between 61 and 90 days 1,066 1,113
Between 91 and 120 days 1,544 859
Over 120 days 190,530 174,317

369,860 204,586
18 (b) STAFF RECEIVABLES

Staff loans 30,759 33,712
Interest suspended (758) (608)
Specific provision (1,162) (1,162)
General provision 79 1
28,918 31,943
18 (¢) STAFF RECEIVABLES
Staff advances and imprest 3,687 3,354
Provision for staff advances and imprest (2,528) (2,528)
1,159 826

Amounts due within a year

19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank
Cash in hand 656

Details analysis of the cash and cash equivalent:

Standard Chartered Bank 1,353,309 837,310
Kenya Commercial Bank Lid 321,821 551,953
National Bank of Kenya 78,671 17,207
Co-operative Bank of Kenya 168 168
M-Pesa 494 496
Cash in hand 656 656

1,755,119 1,407,791

The bulk of the cash at bank was held at Standard Chartered Bank Kenya Limited and Kenya Commercial B
These are the main company’s bankers including National Bank of Kenya Limited.
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20 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021
Kshs’000  Kshs’000
Authorised:
10,000,000 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 par value each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
4,013,865 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 par value each 80,277 80,277

21 RESERVES

Capital Reserves 22,523 22,523
Disposal of sheds 68,637 68,637
GOK Irredeemable Loans 190,257 190,257
Revaluation Reserves 838,405 838,405
i Grants 6,448,446 5,843,812
GOK Loan write-off 1,210,000 1,210,000
Retained Earnings (3,343,243) (3.3 89,170)

5,435,025 4,784,464

CAPITAL RESERVES
This relates to assets donated to the company by development partners

DISPOSAL OF SHEDS
This relates to profit on disposal of company sheds between 1990 and 2008

GOK IRREDEEMABILE LOANS

The amount of Kshs.190, 257,000.00 includes book value of Kshs.137, 900,000.00 industrial
sheds constructed as at 30t June, 1985 from Government of Kenya loans and Kshs.52, 266,000.00
accrued interests on Government of Kenya loans up 10 30t June, 1985. These loans are

irredeemable subordinated to equity and bear no interest.

REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve relates o the revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment. As
indicated in the Statement of Changes in Equity, this is stated after transfer of excess depreciation net of
related deferred tax to retained earnings. Revaluation surpluses are not distributable.

GRANTS
This refers to grants from the Government and other donor pariners. These are included in the reserves

under statement of changes in equity.

RETAINED EARNINGS

The retained earnings represent amou<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>